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OUR ROLE
NZICA is the
membership body
of choice for 33,297
accounting and
business professionals
who work across
New Zealand and
around the globe.

A dynamic organisation, we are focused on championing the accounting
profession and nurturing the next generation of business leaders.
Overseen by a Council and Board, our services are delivered by a skilled
team of over 160 people across 18 locations in New Zealand, Australia
and the UK.
We strive to:
■

ensure that the quality, expertise and integrity of our members
meet the highest ethical and professional standards, so businesses
and individuals can be assured that they are working with the best
accounting professionals

■

deliver the professional education and training people need to achieve
a New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants designation, and
provide the continuing professional development required to maintain
the high standards of those designations

■

work on behalf of New Zealanders to advocate for sound public policy
in the financial, regulatory and taxation areas. Internationally, we
advocate for New Zealand's interests through our membership of
international accountancy bodies.
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THE MEMBERSHIP
GROWTH IN THE CA COLLEGE
NZICA members hold one of
three prestigious designations:
Chartered Accountant, Associate
Chartered Accountant or Accounting
Technician. Provisional members are
those working towards achieving
their professional designation
through study and work experience.
In 2012 the largest growth in
membership was evident in the
CA designation which increased
by 560 members from 2011. Total
net membership growth was 564
members in 2011–2012

MEMBERSHIP BY COLLEGE

9%

ACA

2.5%

AT

74%

CA

14.5% PROVISIONAL
Includes PAT, PACA and PCA
0.15% Non-member partners not included

GENDER

DEMOGRAPHICS

42%

FEMALE

58%

MALE

The profession continues to grow
steadily in popularity among
women – in 2012 the proportion
of female members grew by 3.2%
or 435 members. We are also
pleased to see the diversity of the
membership evolving – in 2012
the trend of high growth among
members who identify themselves
as Asian continued with a 15.5%
increase to 3,819 members.
Members identifying themselves
- is 0.8%, signalling more
as Maori
work to be done to attract more
- to the profession.
Maori

CULTURAL DIVERSITY

Meanwhile the age of members
continues to reflect the ageing
demographics of New Zealand’s
population with 6.8% growth in
those 50–59. Considerable emphasis
is being placed on growing the
proportion of members under the
age of 30 to ensure sufficient supply
of CAs into the future.

AGE

15%

ASIAN

61%

NEW ZEALANDER,
& EUROPEAN
MAORI

24%

OTHER

Includes Middle Eastern, African,
Pacific, multiple selections,
not specified & prefer not to say

14%

UNDER 30

24% 30–39
29% 40–49
19% 50–59
13% 60+
0.77% did not disclose their age
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THE YEAR AT A GLANCE

1 23

33,297 members,
up 564

Proportion of
female members
reached 42%,
up 3.2%

Member
engagement hits
record high
of 45.5%
from 43.5%

789

105 complaints
resolved

330 media stories
Journal wins MPA
referencing NZICA,
Magazine of the
up from 250
Year – Membership
and Custom
category
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56,518
registrations for
NZICA courses,
conferences,
webinars and SIGs
up 8%

Student Affiliate
numbers
surge 37%

New transTasman Chartered
Accountants
Program on track
for 2013

$

101112
F4F3 changes
endorsed by
members and
successfully
implemented

Revenue
$37.4 million
(2011, $35.1m)

Surplus
$73,000
(2011, $786,000)
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REGIONS
NORTHERN
MIDLAND

Northland

CENTRAL
Auckland

SOUTHERN

INTERNATIONAL

Bay of Plenty

Waikato

SYDNEY

Gisborne-East Coast

MELBOURNE
UNITED KINGDOM

Taranaki
Hawke’s Bay
Whanganui
Manawatu
Wellington
Wairarapa

Marlborough-Nelson

Canterbury-Westland

Otago

NZICA NATIONAL OFFICE
TOWER BUILDING,
50 CUSTOMHOUSE QUAY
PO BOX 11342,
WELLINGTON, NEW ZEALAND

Southland

NATIONAL CUSTOMER SERVICE CENTRE
0800 4NZICA (0800 469 422)
or +64 4 474 7840
For regional address and contact details
visit nzica.com/nzicanetwork
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A YEAR IN REVIEW
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A YEAR IN REVIEW

PRESIDENT’S LETTER
FIT FOR THE FUTURE
NZICA is here to represent our members’ voice, to protect the profession,
to support career progression and to celebrate the capability and skill of
the membership – and, in doing so, to always act in the public interest.
As our membership grows so does our diversity, and if we add fast-moving
technology and globalisation to the mix then the organisation must evolve.
In a nutshell, this is what the Fit for the Future project has been about.
I have thoroughly enjoyed the opportunity to be involved in the execution
of Fit for the Future 3: Member Engagement (F4F3) – ensuring its
implementation is as successful and transformational as was envisioned.

RICHARD AUSTIN FCA
NZICA PRESIDENT

As I have travelled this year I have witnessed renewed levels of energy,
engagement and drive among the membership. The new Local Leadership
Team structure has brought new talent to the surface, and I am particularly
enjoying attending the new regional conferences and forums.
A key change moving forward will be the adjustment of Council electorates
to better reflect the proportionality of membership geographically. For the
first time that will mean the appointment of a Councillor for the Asian
region. I am enthused by this prospect having visited the East, including
China, earlier in the year and engaged with our members in that region.
I look forward to a representative on Council assisting us in defining how
we can further support members in Asia.
I wish to acknowledge both the staff and Local Leadership Team Chairs for
their exceptional implementation of F4F3. It has been seamless and is a
highlight of my Presidency.

ENSURING THE MEMBER VOICE IS HEARD
One of NZICA’s most important relationships is with the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia (ICAA).
The collaboration between NZICA and ICAA, and the work underway
assessing the synergies and benefits of creating a new body, is timely.
However any merger will need to protect New Zealand sovereignty and
clearly deliver tangible and practical benefits to members.
Should the due diligence work be positive, then full member consultation
would be released in 2013, before a member vote is conducted. I encourage
members to keep an open mind and to engage with the process. It’s vital that
as many members as possible offer considered feedback and engage with
the consultation process. Members will not only be voting for themselves but
also for future members.

CHRISTCHURCH
Late last year NZICA purchased two artworks by Canterbury artists as a
permanent tribute to our members who lost their lives in the Christchurch
earthquake, and those members who lost loved ones.
I was fortunate to be part of selecting the artworks, and attended a small
private ceremony in December to unveil them. The event was attended by
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members’ families, some of whom
had travelled from as far as Australia.
Both these pieces are housed in
NZICA’s new Christchurch office. Our
organisation remains committed to
the rebuild of Christchurch and to
providing ongoing and innovative
initiatives for members.

CAPABLE COUNCIL
My approach to the Presidency has
been to make strategic but practical

11

12

13

1

2

14

3

incremental changes rather than
setting a sweeping agenda. In this
context, the Council has focused
on strategic issues, including the
prospect of a possible merger with
the ICAA, as well as opportunities for
small but powerful change.
My sincere appreciation to this year’s
Council for their informed debate,
collective wisdom and support during
the year. To those Councillors not
seeking re-election I thank you for

15

4

5

18

17

16

6

the contribution you have made to
Council and the profession. Under
the leadership of Liz Hickey FCA next
year, I expect this knowledge and
robust discussion will be leveraged as
the organisation considers a merger
with ICAA. Thank you, Liz, for your
support and counsel and your clear
vision for NZICA’s future. Your innate
understanding of member issues
will, I’m sure, ensure you will be an
outstanding President in 2013.

7

8

21

20

19

9

22

10

NZICA COUNCIL
1. Richard Austin FCA President, Canterbury–Westland
2. Liz Hickey FCA Vice President, Auckland
3. Sharon Cooke FCA Canterbury–Westland
4. Cassandra Crowley CA Wellington
5. Richard Dey CA Coastal Bay of Plenty
6. Graham Edwards FCA Hawke's Bay
7. Grant Ellis CA Auckland
8. Peter Hanson CA Sydney
9. Laurie Jordan FCA Taranaki
10. Ian Leggett FCA UK
11. Tim Loan CA Southland

12. Rex McKinnon FCA Whanganui
13. Anne Marett CA Canterbury–Westland
14. Shelly Mitchell-Jenkins CA Manawatu
15. Kevin Murphy CA Taranaki
16. Baubre Murray CA Wellington
17. Chris Pool CA Northland
18. Murray Taylor FACA Auckland
19. Susan Tremlett CA Auckland
20. Stephen Walker CA Wellington
21. Grant Wilson CA Nelson
22. Craig Wyatt CA Otago

ABSENT: Andrew Dick CA Auckland, Lyall Evans CA Gisborne–East Coast, Fred Hutchings FCA Wellington,
Don MacKenzie CA Canterbury–Westland, Rob McDonald CA Auckland
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A YEAR IN REVIEW

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
Two key issues dominated the Board's agenda this year – Australia and
embedding strategic initiatives.

REGIONAL COLLABORATION
As I have noted previously there is a strong trend towards globalisation in
the profession – globalisation of standards, transferability of qualifications
and expertise, and professional bodies forming close alliances.
Together with the Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia
(ICAA), we have unanimously agreed to further explore the merits of creating
one new membership body.
Both Boards have requested further work be completed on this option
(see note 2 of the financial statements). This work is being carefully
considered by a composite Board of ICAA and NZICA called the Chartered
Accountants of Australia and New Zealand Board (CAANZ).

GRAHAM CROMBIE FCA
NZICA BOARD CHAIR

I must emphasise that this preliminary work is so that we can all have an
informed debate on the pros and cons of creating a new Institute with ICAA.
NZICA’s Council, various leadership forums and, above all, our members will
need to be engaged in a healthy debate in the course of 2012–13.

EMBEDDING STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
We have had three years of transformational change within NZICA to
attempt to best position our Institute for the future.
Great progress has been made on these foundations, but the acid test is
what has changed for our membership. While it is still early days in some
areas, I am pleased with the outcomes starting to be borne from our strategic
initiatives, including:
■

better quality and more relevant professional development

■

a new Technical Services team focusing on the needs of NZICA’s members

■

the roll out of publications and tools such as the IFRS learning and
assessment programme

■

a new auditor oversight regime

■

growing secondary and tertiary affiliate numbers

■

a superb member value campaign – see nzica.com

■

a stronger focus on our large constituency in Auckland

■

the alignment of Advisory Groups with NZICA’s plans and vision.

Both our strategic plan and annual business plan continue to focus on
delivery of our key strategic inititatives.
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WITH APPRECIATION
I would like to thank the Board
members for their considered
response and professionalism
throughout a year which has been
notable for its focus on meaty issues.
We were pleased to welcome
Catherine Drayton CA to the
Board this year. Her considerable
international experiences are
providing a fresh and valuable
addition to discussions.

1

2

3

Congratulations to Liz Hickey FCA,
a Board member to December 2011,
who is now a member of Council as
NZICA’s Vice President.
NZICA has made good progress
against its business plan and we
are pleased to see the organisation
attracting great talent – an important
aspect of achieving our priorities.
The Chief Executive and NZICA people
deserve our thanks and credit for a
significant year.

4

5

6

Lastly I recognise the enormous
effort and time commitment that
our member volunteers invest
in NZICA. From SIG Chairs to
committee members, Advisory
Groups and Leadership Teams –
thank you.

7

8

9

BOARD
1. Graham Crombie FCA Board Chair

EX-OFFICIO:

2. Catherine Drayton CA

7. Richard Austin FCA NZICA President

3. Murray Jack CA

8. Liz Hickey FCA NZICA Vice President

4. Allan Newman FCA

9. Terry McLaughlin FCA NZICA Chief Executive

5. Craig Norgate CA

ABSENT DIRECTORS:

6. Neil Paviour-Smith CA

Doug McKay, Hugh Rennie QC
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT
OPERATIONAL EMPHASIS
The 2011–2012 year has been focused on implementing the Fit for the
Future 3 reforms, changes to the regulatory environment, and continuing
our collaborative work with the ICAA.
Following the announcement of the new joint Chartered Accountants
Program with the ICAA, our education team shifted into high gear to
ensure the organisation and key stakeholders are prepared for launch
in 2013. This has involved development of the content for the new program,
but also significant investment in transitional planning and communications
for students, academics and employers.
I would like to welcome our new trans-Tasman Chief Information Officer,
Leo Morta, who has been appointed to enhance trans-Tasman ICT integration
ahead of the Chartered Accountants Program launch in 2013.

TERRY McLAUGHLIN FCA
NZICA CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Regulatory changes finished their cycle this financial year with the new
auditor oversight model taking effect from 1 July 2012. NZICA is pleased
to be the FMA’s regulatory partner in the licensing and registering of
members and member firms conducting audits of issuers.
With the 2011 development of proposals to increase member engagement
under Fit for the Future 3 (F4F3) and subsequent acceptance by the membership
at the 2011 AGM, the business has tightened alignment between membership
needs and the services we provide.

RAISING THE PROFILE
Congratulations to the Journal, which was recognised for its quality in the
Magazine Publishing Association awards, winning Magazine of the Year –
Custom and Membership.
We have enjoyed taking a more active role promoting the profession through the
media this year with television appearances, regular contributions to national
newspapers and an increased output of media commentary. A renewed focus on
media relations led to a surge in the number of media stories referencing NZICA,
which rose to 330 from 250 a year earlier. This is a key part of our strategy to
promote awareness of NZICA’s designations and the value that our members can
add to New Zealand business.
Such work supports the efforts of our Marketing team, who delivered a “Business
does better with NZICA members” campaign highlighting the work members
do to grow New Zealand SMEs. The digital advertising campaign reinforces the
message that NZICA members are skilled business professionals – and that
the public should know that not all accountants are equal.
Our Leadership and Annual Report Awards continued to highlight excellence
in the profession. It is member success stories such as these that inspire the
next generation of members to choose an NZICA path.

AUCKLAND FOCUS
In response to feedback during the F4F3 review, we committed to spending
more time in Auckland meeting with members and key business leaders.
This time commitment has been supported by the creation of a full-time
Auckland Corporate Key Account Manager to liaise with the large corporate
sector based in the city.
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NATIONAL CONFERENCES
A further outcome of F4F3 was
the reinvigoration of our national
conference programme. Sincere
thanks to our Advisory Groups,
which have been instrumental in
ensuring that our conferences are
relevant and meet member needs.

Expenditure for the year was
$37.369m, 8.8% greater than
last year, driven largely by direct
costs supporting revenue growth,
developing the new Chartered
Accountants Program and additional
ICT costs, collaboration costs and
additional disciplinary activity.

The addition of regional forums to
the conference schedule has given
us a valuable opportunity to meet
with members on their home turf,
and to hear directly about the issues
confronting them, their businesses
and their clients.

On an operational front, we will
be further embedding our work
on member engagement and a
service culture.

THANK YOU
I would like to offer a big thank you
to my executive team for their hard
work this year in developing and
implementing a business plan that
aligns with the objectives agreed by
Board and Council. Thank you also to
the NZICA people, particularly in the
network, who have demonstrated
outstanding commitment to serving
our members.

THE YEAR AHEAD
To the year ahead – 2012–13 offers
exciting challenges.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

NZICA will continue to work closely
with ICAA to roll out our joint
Chartered Accountants Program in
2013 and to integrate our ICT teams
and technology.

This year NZICA achieved a modest
surplus of $0.073m which was in line
with expectations and the budget.
Revenue for the year was $37.442m,
6.6% greater than last year, driven

1

If we proceed further towards the
potential merger then much time and
energy will be devoted to ensuring
NZICA members are well informed of
the pros and cons of the proposition.

largely by increased membership
revenue, as total membership grew
by 564 and the subscription rates
and application fees increased by 2%.

2

3

4

5

6

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM
1. Terry McLaughlin FCA Chief Executive
2. Jeana Abbott Director – Marketing and Human Resources
3. Bruce Bennett FCA General Manager – Education and Admissions
4. Leo Morta Chief Information Officer (trans-Tasman) – Information Technology
5. Richard Moon General Manager – Regulation and General Counsel
6. Arun Patel CA Chief Financial Officer
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SERVICE PERFORMANCE

MEMBER ENGAGEMENT
Aligning NZICA services with
members' needs
HIGHLIGHTS
■

Local Leadership Teams (LLTs) feed into
improved engagement levels

■

Effective implementation of Fit for the
Future 3 recommendations – including
Director of Engagement appointed

■

Member engagement hits record high
of 45.5%
MEMBER SATISFACTION

ENGAGEMENT FOCUS
Improved member engagement
was facilitated by changes to the
NZICA regional network, an outcome
members voted for after the F4F3
review of our services and structures.
Branch committees were replaced
with LLTs mandated to engage with
the membership. New LLTs were
created in the Wairarapa and the
Bay of Plenty in response to the
growing need for engagement in
these areas. The LLTs provide a vital
bridge between members and NZICA
to ensure the organisation remains
relevant and understands the regional
and sectoral needs of members.
At the corporate level, a Director of
Engagement – Member Services and
Support was appointed, based in
Auckland.
Discrete member engagement
reached a record high of 45.5% in
the year to June 2012. This was up
from 43.5% a year earlier. This means
that 45.5% of our New Zealand
members engaged with NZICA at
least once during the year through

CPD, conferences, Special Interest
Groups or social events.
The Advisory Groups appointed
last year were instrumental in the
upgrade of our national and regional
conference programmes. Made up
of volunteer members, they provide
technical expertise and represent
member views and interests across
particular sectors (public practice,
corporate sector, public sector,
regional, practice review and tax).
They also contributed significant
expertise to NZICA’s policy and
thought leadership work on projects
such as Simplifying the taxation of
small business in NZ and the Role
of the CFO publications for the
corporate and public sectors.
However, higher engagement levels
were not mirrored by increased
overall satisfaction at 47% (members
identifying NZICA’s performance as
very good or excellent), down from
51% a year earlier. NZICA is aiming
for 60% of members rating very
good or excellent.
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CORPORATE FOCUS
F4F3 reiterated a significant need for
more focus on corporate sector concerns.
As a result, the Chief Executive,
Board Chair and President undertook
a series of events for members in
the corporate sector to ensure their
views were understood.
The Chief Executive delivered on the
commitment to spend more time in
Auckland, New Zealand’s corporate
capital, and an Auckland-based
role was created for a corporate Key
Account Manager.
This has supported the implementation
of a “Top 100” plan to link NZICA more
closely with NZ’s top 100 corporate
employers of members and deliver to
their unique requirements.

PUBLIC PRACTICE
NZICA continued to build on a strong
platform with public practitioners
through the provision of valued CPD,
roadshows and conferences.
Our tax team supported public
practitioners with a range of issues but

9%

EXCELLENT

38% VERY GOOD
34% GOOD
16% FAIR
3%

POOR

of particular note this year were flow-on
effects from the Penny and Hooper case
(dealing with salaries and trust structures).
The tax team also continued to represent
member views to Inland Revenue on
issues from call centre answer times to
tax system enhancements.
The Government Policy and Advocacy team
liaised between members and government
on a range of legislative proposals from the
Anti-Money Laundering and Countering
Financing of Terrorism Act to the Financial
Markets Conduct Bill.
Our Technical Services Team continued
to assist members with technical queries
and represent member views to the
relevant authorities on issues such as
disclosures and the development of the
new Financial Reporting Framework.

LOOKING FORWARD
The year ahead will focus on improving
our overall member engagement and
satisfaction statistics.
In particular this will focus on those
members not choosing to engage with
NZICA services and support.

JOHN SCHOL CA
PARTNER, MALLOCH MCLEAN LTD
John Schol CA became the first Southland Leadership Team Chair
in March this year and he has seen a lift in the number of members
engaging with NZICA since the F4F3 changes were implemented.
“The LLTs are great for representing the different demographics in our
membership,” he says. “It is important that we have members on the
LLT that represent our diverse membership so that they have a voice.”
John sees huge benefits for members in engaging with their
Institute. “I think the F4F3 changes are helping us to reach those
members who haven’t made the most of their NZICA membership.
In Southland we now have members in our Leadership Team who
had previously not interacted with the branch. In the past we’ve
had to shoulder tap members to serve on the branch but we had
people coming forward instead which was very encouraging.
“The lines of communication are open. I work closely with the
Regional Manager and the Southland Coordinator. I know if a
member comes to me with an issue I can speak to them and it will
reach NZICA and be listened to. The LLTs now need to keep working
to make sure NZICA is providing members with what’s important.”
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DEVELOP RELEVANT PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
Members value NZICA for delivering
resources that help their careers
HIGHLIGHTS
■

New products deliver relevant training
and resources to members

■

Focus on conferences in response to
F4F3 feedback

■

Online Resource Centre launched

■

Significant growth in webinar-delivered
professional development
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT REGISTRATIONS

QUALITY AND RELEVANCE
It was a year of refocusing NZICA’s
products and services to what
members want and need.
Areas targeted include national
conferences, which the Fit for the
Future 3 review highlighted as a key
resource for members.
The continuing professional
development (CPD) programme was
sharpened, and the expertise of the
sectoral Advisory Groups was tapped
this year to deliver sector-specific
conferences such as the Public Sector
Conference, Primary Sector Conference
and the CEO/CFO Conference.
A Regional Conference and Forum
model was implemented, with the
first held in the Central region in June.
Alongside this, there was a renewed
focus on professional ethics with
members now required to complete
ethics updates as part of their
annual CPD. To support this, ondemand modules were developed
and a series of ethics updates held
face to face throughout the country.

The publications team released a
range of new resources including
career development tools (Slave
to a Job, Master of your Career),
professional thought leadership
(The Role of the CFO in the Public
and Corporate Sectors) and toolkits.
A publications highlight was the
Journal which won the Magazine
of the Year – Membership and
Custom in the Magazine Publishing
Association awards for the first time.
What these developments shared
was a commitment to responding
to member needs in a changing
environment.

CONVENIENCE AND TIMELINESS

resources and guides to ethical and
professional standards.
The Resource Centre received more
than 9,000 views in its first two months.
Members have embraced the
convenience of web-based training
and our CPD team delivered 98
webinars this year (up from 66 in
2011) to 4,530 registrants.
An online IFRS learning and
assessment programme was
launched in May, providing members
with a convenient method to improve
their understanding of international
financial reporting standards.

THOUGHT LEADERSHIP

New and upgraded online services
delivered convenience and timeliness
to members and bolstered the work of
the CPD, publications and library teams.

A series of releases stimulated
debate among members, and in the
media, on topics including public
sector finances and the role of the
CFO in the corporate sector.

A new Resource Centre on the
website delivered e-commerce
functionality and a centralised
location for the resources available
to members – including on-demand
courses, webinars, technical

The Simplifying Taxation for Small
Business paper generated wide
interest across the print media,
coverage by key television and
radio news services, and stimulated
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61.4% SPECIAL INTEREST GROUPS
26.3% COURSES
8%

WEBINARS & ON-DEMAND

4.3% CONFERENCES

online debate. Designed to be a
constructive thought piece, the paper
puts forward fresh thinking regarding tax
simplification for micro businesses.

LOOKING FORWARD
We will continue to focus on delivering
toolkits in response to member demand.
Expect to see national CPD courses
continue to target core competencies and
topical issues, while the range of national
conferences will increase.
An upgraded Online Members Handbook
is in development which will provide
a searchable database of all technical
accounting, auditing and professional
standards.

PETER CORLEY CA
MANAGER FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING,
NEW ZEALAND TRANSPORT AGENCY
Peter Corley CA attended the Public Sector Conference in March. In
the past Peter felt that some conferences he had attended were too
technical and going through the motions, but not on this occasion.
“The conference was great. I found it very relevant to my role
and the presenters all covered topics that were current and future
focused. The presenters weren’t too technically focused – they were
people at the coalface of the public sector. Their case studies were
about the work they’re doing, and not all theory, which I found
helpful. They also dealt with issues affecting the public sector now
such as providing value for money and sustainability,” he says.
“I think the benefit of going to a conference like this is being able to
take time to think about what you’re learning and how it applies
to your work. It takes you away from your everyday and, when
you have quality speakers, it helps you to apply it to your role.
“In the past I have gone to other organisations for conferences
and courses but this NZICA conference really made me enthusiastic.
The brochure was interesting and the programme offered entertaining
and informative material that I thought would be useful to me.
I will go back and I would recommend it to my colleagues.”

NEW ZEALAND INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 2012 ANNUAL REPORT 19

SERVICE PERFORMANCE

GROW OUR MEMBERSHIP
Strong student affiliate growth bodes
well for the future

8,000

HIGHLIGHTS

6,000

7,000

■

Tertiary student affiliate numbers surge 37%

5,000

■

“Pick a career in business” campaign
reaches secondary schools

4,000

■

Extension of ACA career path to four
new tertiary institutions

■

Partnership with UK’s Association of
Accounting Technicians

3,000
2,000
1,000

JUNE 2011

JUNE 2012

0

STUDENT AFFILIATES

TOMORROW’S MEMBERS
A continued focus on the next
generation of members has been in
full swing during the year to ensure
students have a clear pathway to
NZICA membership.
NZICA undertakes an extensive
programme of work with our
Student Affiliates at tertiary
institutes. The Affiliate programme
now has 5084 tertiary students
enrolled, up 37% on a year earlier.
NZICA increased its presence on
university campuses to ensure students
were kept informed of the Chartered
Accountants Program changes and
new options available to them.
Key activities included career days
for new students, career speed
dating for graduates and potential
employers, and ongoing online
support at our Facebook page. Digital
media, and particularly the use of
social media, has proved to be very
successful with this age group –
NZICA’s Facebook page now has over
3,900 followers.

A “Pick a career in business” campaign
was instrumental in raising
the awareness of the chartered
accountancy career among secondary
school students. Engagement with
secondary schools has continued
to gain momentum, culminating in
113% growth in secondary school
Student Affiliates to 2,180.
An increased presence at schools
and Youth Enterprise Trust events
underpinned by strong marketing
has raised the awareness of NZICA
and accounting as a rewarding
profession.

REJUVENATION OF THE COLLEGES
NZICA has three membership colleges
– Chartered Accountant (CA),
Associate Chartered Accountant (ACA)
and Accounting Technician (AT).
This year saw a renewed push to
promote knowledge of, and access
to, the ACA and AT qualifications.
A significant success this year
was the accreditation of Northtec,
Whitireia New Zealand, Christchurch
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Polytechnic Institute of Technology,
and the Southland Institute of
Technology to offer the academic
pathway to becoming an ACA.
We also embarked on a joint
marketing programme with
accredited tertiary institutions
to increase awareness of, and
participation in, the ACA college.
Our tertiary partners are strongly
supportive and we expect a
conservative growth of an additional
120 ACA students per year. This
supports NZICA’s goal to ensure that
students in all parts of New Zealand
have the opportunity to choose our
designations for their careers.
For AT members, a partnership has been
formed with the UK-based Association
of Accounting Technicians (AAT),
which has more than 120,000
members worldwide (see also page 24).

LOOKING FORWARD
The launch of the new Chartered
Accountants Program in 2013 will mark
a new era in the internationalisation

TERTIARY
SECONDARY

of the designations we offer, and enhance
the ability of both NZICA and ICAA to
promote the CA designation in the AsiaPacific Region.
Partnering with the AAT creates
international recognition for our AT
College and is expected to lead to good
growth in this college over time.

RENATA HIMIONA
ACCOUNTANT, SUDBURYS LIMITED
Being able to complete an accounting degree in Northland is
important to Renata Himiona because it allows her to stay close to her
family and support network. “When I started studying, my five little
brothers were very young, and I wanted to be a part of their lives. If I’d
had to move away to study I wouldn’t have seen them much,” she says.
This, coupled with the fact that her partner had his apprenticeship in
Whangarei, made studying at NorthTec the only option for Renata.
Being able to get an NZICA designation was important to Renata too.
“I actually started studying another accounting degree, but when I
found out NZICA was accrediting the Bachelor of Applied Management
at NorthTec I cross-credited my degree and moved across. I must
admit I didn’t know a lot about accounting when I started, but I soon
learnt what an NZICA designation could do for my career prospects.”
Renata began working for Sudburys, a chartered accountancy firm in
Whangarei, in January 2012 where she is finishing her study and
practical experience. She hopes to continue to study after completing
her ACA and eventually become a Chartered Accountant. “I’d like to
continue living and working in Whangarei – I’m really enjoying my
accounting work and I’m really pleased I can do that in my hometown.”
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STRENGTHEN GLOBAL ALLIANCES
NZICA and ICAA Boards are investigating
the pros and cons of a merger
HIGHLIGHTS
■

■

■

Further progress in preparation for the launch
of the joint Chartered Accountants Program
in February 2013
Good progress on aligning ICT within
NZICA and ICAA
Ongoing assessment with ICAA regarding
creation of a new single membership body

COLLABORATION ACHIEVEMENTS
Arguably NZICA’s most important
step towards protecting members’
long-term future is our collaboration
with ICAA.
In this context, the collaboration has
garnered attention and praise from
other overseas professional bodies
for its innovation and vision. Over
the year we have achieved a number
of advances including:
■

■

developing the core elements of
the joint Chartered Accountants
Program in preparation for
launch in 2013
appointing a joint Chief
Information Officer to deliver
trans-Tasman ICT solutions. The
next steps are progressing to the
roll-out of a common learning
management system (to support
delivery of the Chartered
Accountants Program) and a
common customer relationship
management system.

GLOBAL DISTRIBUTION
OF MEMBERS

80%

NEW ZEALAND

7%

AUSTRALIA

7%

EUROPE & UK

4%

ASIA/PACIFIC

1%

USA/CANADA/STH AMERICA

1%

REST OF THE WORLD

Members in the public sector have
responded positively to the tripartite
agreement with ICAA and the UK-based
Chartered Institute of Public Finance
and Accountancy (CIPFA). In 2012,
three NZICA members were awarded
scholarships to complete the CIPFA
professional qualification.

The key strategic driver for
considering creating a new single
organisation is that it would
better position both Institutes and
the Chartered brand for global
consolidation of the profession,
and therefore be in the long-term
interest of members.

NZICA and ICAA shared networking
functions for members overseas,
including joint Presidential visits to
the UK in 2011 and Asia in 2012.

Both Institutes are committed
to maintaining and growing the
designation’s status and influence
and believe the best way to do this
is by creating something new –
a contemporary Institute that is
focussed on maintaining Chartered
as the stand-out pre-eminent
designation in business and finance.

PREPARING FOR GLOBALISATION
OF THE PROFESSION
In March 2012 the Boards of ICAA
and NZICA met to review the progress
of existing collaboration initiatives,
and to consider a comprehensive
report on opportunities for further
collaboration.
The two Boards unanimously agreed
to further explore the merits of
creating one new membership body.
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As a result, further work was
undertaken to examine and develop
options for a range of areas, including
governance arrangements, legal and
tax considerations, the NZICA Act,
membership value, further analysis
of costs and synergies and the New
Zealand-specific AT and ACA Colleges.

26,735 MEMBERS
2,247 MEMBERS
2,264 MEMBERS
1,395 MEMBERS
449 MEMBERS
207 MEMBERS

LOOKING FORWARD
The additional due diligence work on the
merger will be a focus of 2012.
If the outcome of the further work is
favourable, and identified milestones
achieved, then NZICA and ICAA will
release a comprehensive members’
consultative document in 2013.

TERRY BIRSS CA
DIRECTOR, A T BIRSS & CO
After living and practising in Australia for over 30 years, Terry Birss CA
can see the benefits of further collaboration between NZICA and ICAA.
“While NZICA CAs are well thought of here, it makes sense for us
to merge with ICAA as the current set up does not easily facilitate
NZICA members practising in Australia. The removal of unnecessary
impediments to cost-effective practice, while maintaining high
standards, would benefit clients and widen the recognition of our skills.
“Collaboration is the first logical step in the globalisation of the
brand, which can only strengthen it. I can see CA being the global
standard and brand and our collective Institutes as the sub-brand.
“Currently we are obliged to identify ourselves as New Zealand CAs.
To practice we must obtain local accreditation. If we are accorded the
same status and instantly recognised as the same as an Australian
CA, it will make it much easier to work here and employers will
know we are just as qualified as ICAA members.”
Terry has a great deal of experience with trans-Tasman collaboration.
He and fellow Rotarians began the RYDA road safety education
programme for high school students. RYDA has collaborated with its
sister charity in New Zealand, Road Safety Education Ltd, for six years.
“Through a strong partnership, real benefits are flowing across the
Tasman. We have a greater market presence, eliminated duplication
of material and can better utilise our sponsor/charitable funds.”
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QUALIFICATIONS THAT ARE FLEXIBLE AND INTERNATIONAL
International alliances underpin
the worldwide recognition of
our qualifications

MEMBERSHIP OF GAA COUNTRIES

HIGHLIGHTS

GAA COUNTRIES

■

■

■

Online delivery of the Trans-Tasman
Chartered Accountants Program
Ongoing work with the GAA and
international accountancy bodies
New memorandum of understanding with
UK-based Association of Accounting Technicians

NZICA MEMBERS WITH
PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIP
IN A GAA COUNTRY

AUSTRALIA
CANADA
ENGLAND AND WALES
HONG KONG
IRELAND
SCOTLAND
SOUTH AFRICA
USA

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
PROGRAM
The new Chartered Accountants
Program will be jointly delivered
by NZICA and ICAA from 2013.
The three-year training programme is
based on international best practice
and meets both Institutes’ goal of
having a rigorous, modern and flexible
programme with which to deliver the
Chartered Accountant designation.
The Chartered Accountants Program
will incorporate modern technologies
and teaching methods. There’s a blend
of online and face-to-face learning,
which will meet the changing needs
of employers and the new educational
demands of candidates.
Candidates will be able to study
wherever they have an internet
connection on a specially designed
learning platform.
The new joint Chartered Accountants
Program utilises facilitators with
the best knowledge and skills from
both sides of the Tasman. It also

recognises the closer economic ties
of our two countries and the evolving
trans-Tasman employment market.

Program. Further information will be
provided to the GAA later in the year
to formalise the five-year recognition.

This in turn ensures the training
our members receive is recognised
internationally as of a very high
quality, and that our designation
remains respected and sought after.

NZICA continues to have mutual
recognition and/or exemption
agreements in many countries.
See Appendix A page 30 for a list
of alliances.

GAA RENEWAL OF
MUTUAL RECOGNITION

ASSOCIATION OF ACCOUNTING
TECHNICIANS MEMORANDUM
OF UNDERSTANDING

NZICA continues to be a member of the
Global Accounting Alliance (GAA) which
represents over 775,000 of the world’s
leading professional accountants in
more than 165 countries.
In March 2012 the GAA Education
Directors agreed in principle
that NZICA’s Mutual Recognition
Agreements (MRAs) with the other
GAA bodies should be renewed for
the next five years.
This takes NZICA’s mutual recognition
through to the completion of the
existing professional competence
programme and the commencement
of the new Chartered Accountants

24 2012 ANNUAL REPORT NEW ZEALAND INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

NZICA signed a memorandum of
understanding with the Association
of Accounting Technicians (AAT) in
the United Kingdom in May 2012.
The memorandum agrees that the
two parties will explore opportunities
for offering the AAT qualification in
New Zealand.
With AAT, a project team is currently
looking at new pathways for NZICA's
Accounting Technician designation.
Areas the project team are
investigating include an online
learning system for the AT designation,
and how NZICA can recognise

953 MEMBERS

272 MEMBERS
41 MEMBERS
266 MEMBERS
109 MEMBERS
16 MEMBERS
51 MEMBERS
124 MEMBERS
74 MEMBERS

the prior education and experience of
applicants to the AT College.
Our work with the AAT will allow our AT
members to have a globally recognised
and relevant designation.

LOOKING FORWARD
NZICA will continue to work with
students, employers and members on
the transition to the new Chartered
Accountants Program. Enrolments begin
late 2012 and the new Program will be
launched in February 2013.
We anticipate launching our new AT
programme in early 2013.

SAM WHITE
STUDENT AFFILIATE, MASSEY UNIVERSITY
Sam White will be among the first candidates on the new Chartered
Accountants Program in 2013 when he starts as a graduate at Deloitte.
When he began a Bachelor of Business studies at Massey University
he wasn’t sure what he wanted to do. “Accounting stood out –
I really enjoyed those papers and decided to pursue it,” he says.
“I heard a lot about NZICA during my study. Becoming a
member really goes hand in hand with accounting study.
It’s the next logical step if you want to excel in accounting.
“From what I’ve heard the Program seems really practical and
the modules will complement my work experience. Also, the
flexibility of being able to do it online will be a big plus. I did
some online study at university but this will be another step up.”
The trans-Tasman aspect of the programme and international
recognition of his designation is also important to Sam. “I plan on
travelling at some stage and having the same training and experience
as my Australian counterparts will no doubt help my opportunities.
“The ability to move around the world with my skills appeals
to me hugely and I understand that the new Program
and NZICA’s GAA affiliations will make that possible.”
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EFFECTIVE REGULATION OF MEMBERS
Significant disciplinary actions and the
transistion to a new regulatory regime
were completed successfully
HIGHLIGHTS
■

Successful transition to new auditor
oversight regime

■

New Government Policy and Advocacy
team established

■

Significant disciplinary phase complete

PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT DECISIONS

AUDITOR OVERSIGHT

PROTECTING THE BRAND

New Zealand has introduced a
co-regulatory model for the regulation
of auditors of issuers, with NZICA
responsible for licensing and
registration, compliance monitoring
and disciplinary functions in relation
to its members. The discharge of these
responsibilities is overseen by the
Financial Markets Authority (FMA).

This year saw the completion of the
disciplinary action relating to the
collapse of several high-profile finance
companies. NZICA took that action to
ensure those undertaking such work
meet the high professional standards
NZICA demands of its members.

During the year, considerable effort
was directed at consulting with
affected members, and the FMA, to
set prescribed minimum standards
for individuals and firms wishing to
undertake issuer audits.
The transitional window for licensing
and registration closed recently with
around 150 members and their firms
now appearing on the Companies
Office register. The full regime went
live on 1 July 2012, and NZICA will
be continuing to engage with its
members and the FMA to ensure its
implementation occurs as smoothly
as possible.

During the year the Disciplinary
Tribunal considered 40 matters, with
15 members being removed from the
register, three members suspended
and eight censured.
Other orders made by the Tribunal
included monetary penalties,
suspension of Certificates of Public
Practice, undertakings, and cost and
publicity orders.
For the first time a determination
against a former member was also
considered and resulted in an order
that had they been a member they
would have been removed from
the register.
The costs of the professional conduct
processes for the year were $2.299m,
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with recoveries of $0.857m, compared
with 2011 where costs were $1.988m
and recoveries were $0.647m.
During 2011–2012 the Appeals
Council met twice to hear appeals
by two members against decisions
of the Disciplinary Tribunal. On both
occasions the Disciplinary Tribunal’s
substantive decision was upheld.
The Practice Review team continued
its programme of cyclical and
risk-based reviews completing 375
review visits. In 85% of cases no
further action was required.
Further compliance monitoring
activity was undertaken in the areas
of financial advisory services and
PS-2 Client Monies.

NEW GOVERNMENT POLICY
AND ADVOCACY TEAM
A new team was established to
enhance NZICA’s ability to advise
government on effective policy
development and to represent the
interests of members and the public
in the policy development process.

72 COMPLAINTS RESOLVED BY
PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT
COMMITTEE

30 COMPLAINTS RESOLVED BY
DISCIPLINARY TRIBUNAL*
*Some members were subject to
more than one complaint

3 COMPLAINTS WITHDRAWN

Submissions were delivered on a range of
issues and legislative proposals including
the Financial Markets Conduct Bill, audit
firm incorporation, and proportionate
and capped liability for accountants.

LOOKING FORWARD
Continuing a smooth implementation of
the Auditor Regulation Act is a significant
priority for our regulatory team. In
addition NZICA will be consulting with
members concerning broader proposals
to regulate auditors as specialists.
The government policy team will
be focused on a range of new
government initiatives, particularly
the Law Commission’s review on joint
and several liability (including statutory
capping of the liability of accountants).
Process improvement in the area of
practice review and complaints handling
will also be a focus.

SIMON BROTHERTON CA
PARTNER ASSURANCE, ERNST & YOUNG
Simon Brotherton CA believes the move to auditor co-regulation between
NZICA and the Financial Markets Authority is a major, positive step.
“New Zealand hasn’t had audit regulation like this before so
it is a significant change. In some ways we are catching up
with much of the world having independent regulation and I
think it is a good move,” he says. “I have spent a considerable
amount of time this year reading up on the changes so I
understood them and could take part in the consultation.”
Simon feels that the new model will help raise the level of trust in
audits after negative publicity following finance company failures.
“It is vital that the market and clients can trust the quality of
audits. NZICA and the FMA’s involvement in regulation will
firstly help the perception of audit and I believe in time will
prove very valuable in maintaining the quality of issuer audits.
“NZICA has an important role in maintaining stringent standards
in relation to who can be a licensed auditor. High standards such as
these will help ensure the market’s confidence in audit work and
also ensure that anyone undertaking audits is up to date and has
the necessary skills. The same applies for quality review – strong
quality review procedures will help keep audit standards high.”
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EXEMPLAR SME
NZICA strives to be an exceptional business
that serves members as should be expected
of a membership body in the 21st century
HIGHLIGHTS
■

High quality talent recruited in key roles

■

Changes to Council to better represent members

■

Reduction in reliance on member subscriptions

SOURCES OF REVENUE
Graph based on an activity -based
allocation model

EFFECTIVE GOVERNANCE
Members approved changes to
the Council at the 2011 AGM and
they will come into effect following
Council elections in late 2012.
Councillors will be elected by region
now instead of by branches to give
better proportional representation.
Areas with high concentrations of
members will have more Councillors
to represent them, and overseas areas
such as Asia and the Americas will
now be represented by a dedicated
Councillor.

PEOPLE
During 2011–12 NZICA recruited
quality staff to deliver new services
to members, including a trans-Tasman
Chief Information Officer, Director
of Member Engagement, Corporate
Key Account Manager, Director of
Advocacy (Government Relations),
a new Technical Services team and
two new experienced members for
our Professional Development team.
We have increased the capability
of the NZICA network. Our five

previously non-staffed offices, in the
Manawatu, Whanganui, Northland,
Gisborne, and Taranaki, are now staffed.
NZICA now has local offices servicing
the following areas: Northland,
Auckland, Waikato, Bay of Plenty,
Hawke’s Bay, Gisborne–East Coast,
Manawatu, Taranaki, Wairarapa,
Whanganui, Wellington, Canterbury–
Westland, Marlborough–Nelson,
Otago, Southland, Melbourne, Sydney
and London.

DIGITAL ENGAGEMENT
Our website nzica.com was further
upgraded, more online CPD and
publications resources were made
available, and an online Journal was
launched. A Resource Centre was
launched, providing easy access to
publications, toolkits and eLearning.

DIGITAL UPGRADES
Website enhancements also improved
the usability and information
architecture of nzica.com to enable
members to access information and
services more easily.
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LOOKING FORWARD
Over the next financial year
members will receive information
on the make up of the Council and
how to vote for their representatives.
Getting the right people involved
is vital to the continuing success of
NZICA’s governance and strategic
initiatives.
Members can expect to see further
digital enhancement with the evolution
of nzica.com to ensure it is mobile
phone compatible, and the launch
of the online myCommunity social
networking tool for members to share
ideas and discuss specialist topics.
MyCommunity is currently being
piloted with one Advisory Group, and
will provide a place for sectors and
specialty groups to interact, engage,
debate, share, discuss and collaborate
on topics of interest, ideas and
documents. This will be extended
to other targeted member groups
before its full launch later in 2012.

54.8%

MEMBER
SUBSCRIPTIONS

14.6%

CA, ACA &
AT COLLEGE
PROGRAMMES

13%

PRODUCTS &
SERVICES

10.2%

PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

7.4%

PROFESSIONAL
CONDUCT &
PRACTICE REVIEW
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USE OF FUNDS FOR THE MEMBERSHIP
For the financial year to June 2012, members’ subscription fees made up 55%
of NZICA’s revenue, down from 57% a year earlier.
A total of $37.1m was spent delivering a variety of core services, and
the development of new services as detailed below.
1. Member services: One of the
largest portions of our expenditure
goes on ensuring members can access
information and services when they
need them. This includes the popular
library, professional support and
advice, and management of member
requests, feedback and finance.
2. CA, ACA & AT Colleges: Education
includes the provision of the AT,
ACA and CA college postgraduate
programmes required to become a
member of NZICA.
3. Professional development: This year
saw increased focus on our conference
programme. Professional development
revenue rose 7% from a year earlier.
4. Marketing, PR & communications:
The “Business does better with
an NZICA member” campaign
raised awareness of the value that
members provide to New Zealand

businesses. This category also
includes our work with secondary
and tertiary students to promote
awareness of the career opportunities
NZICA offers.
5. SIGs and engagement: This includes
funding of SIG group activities and
member engagement at the NZICA
network level.
6. Admitting members: The Admissions
team ensure that individuals applying
to each of NZICA’s three colleges meet
the required eligibility criteria.
7–8. Professional conduct & practice
review: This includes the work
of the Disciplinary Tribunal, the
Professional Conduct Committee
and Practice Review. It is a vital factor
in the protection of the CA brand and
the status of the profession.

DEVELOPMENT

12.3% MARKETING, PR & COMMS
9%
SIGS & ENGAGEMENT
6.5% ADMITTING MEMBERS
6.5% PRACTICE REVIEW
6%
PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT
5.5% TAX, TECHNICAL & ADVOCACY
4.8% CONFERENCE CENTRE
4.1% GUIDES & PUBLICATIONS
3.8% JOURNAL

9. Tax, technical & advocacy:
With the move of the accounting
and auditing standard-setting
function to the XRB, we were
able to invest in a new Technical
Services team focused on the needs
of our members. The bulk of our
advocacy work was in submissions
to government, IR, the FMA or the
XRB to represent member views
on regulatory change. NZICA also
contributed to international debates
on standard setting.
10. Conference centres: NZICA’s
conference facilities in Auckland
and Wellington are a resource for
member events but also return
revenue to reduce our reliance on
member subscriptions.
11. Guides and publications:
The Publications team delivered a
number of print and online resources
and toolkits for members this year,
including the Cash Management
Toolkit, the Code of Ethics and guides
to standards.
12. The Journal: Delivery of 11 issues
of the award-winning Journal to
all members.
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APPENDIX A
NZICA continues to have mutual recognition in the
following countries:

NZICA has partial exemption arrangements with:
■

CPA Australia

■

Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia (ICAA)

■

■

Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales (ICAEW)

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA)

■

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)

■

Chartered Accountants Ireland (CAI)

■

■

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland (ICAS)

Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
(ACCA)

■

South African Institute of Chartered Accountants (SAICA)

■

Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA)

■

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA)

■

US International Qualifications Appraisal Board (IQAB)
representing the National Association of State Boards
of Accountancy (NASBA) and the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)

■

Association of Accounting Technicians (AAT UK)

■

Hong Kong Institute of Accredited Accounting
Technicians (HKIAAT)

30 2012 ANNUAL REPORT NEW ZEALAND INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

MEMBER SUCCESS

NEW ZEALAND INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2012 ANNUAL REPORT 31

MEMBER SUCCESS

2011 LEADERSHIP AWARDS

HONOURS

The following members were honoured at the Leadership
Awards in November.

Thirteen members were recognised in the New Year or
Queen’s Birthday Honours lists in 2012.

Kevin Simpkins FCA
American Express Outstanding Service to the
Profession Award

KNIGHT OF THE NZ ORDER OF MERIT

Jan Dawson FCA
Crombie Lockwood 2011 Chartered Accountant
of the Year Award
Joe Hanita CA
Westpac 2011 Outstanding New Member
of the Year Award
Scott Scoullar CA
Ernst and Young 2011 Public Sector CFO
of the Year Award

INTERNATIONAL LEADERSHIP
NZICA Life Member Warren Allen FCA continued his term
as Deputy President of the International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC), a role he was elected to in 2010.

Sir Roderick Sheldon Deane FACA
for services to business and the community

COMPANION OF THE NZ ORDER OF MERIT
John Shewan FCA
for services to business
John Lewis Spencer FCA
for services to business

MEMBER NEW ZEALAND ORDER OF MERIT
Gary Chapman ACA
for services to New Zealand-United Arab Emirates relations
Hinerangi Raumati CA
for services to business and Maori
Alfred Wakefield FCA
for services to harness racing

QUEEN’S SERVICE MEDAL

Also at IFAC, Ken Warren FCA continued to serve as a
member of the influential International Public Sector
Accounting Standards Board, a position he has held
since 2009.

Christopher Carson CA
for services to the state

In September, Keith Wedlock FCA assumed a significant
position at the forefront of the global profession as
the President of the Confederation of Asian and Pacific
Accountants (CAPA).

Murray McKinnon ACA
for services to athletics

Brian Coulter ACA (Retired)
for services to rugby

Kerrin Marshall FCA
for services to pipe bands
Gerald (Gerry) Rea FCA
for services to the community
Robert Ting CA
for services to the Chinese community
Patrick Waite FCA
for services to the community
Kuan Cheong Yap CA
for services to the community

32 2012 ANNUAL REPORT NEW ZEALAND INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FELLOWSHIPS
NZICA presents Fellowships for outstanding contributions to the accountancy profession and/or community service.
The process for identifying NZICA’s Fellows also changed this year. The criteria for becoming a Fellow has been
broadened to recognise those members who have had significant achievements in their field but who have not
necessarily worked with NZICA in a governance role.
The following members were honoured at the 2011 AGM.

AUCKLAND

TARANAKI

MARLBOROUGH–NELSON

Gary Swift FCA

Bruce Richards FCA

John Murray FCA

MANAWATU

CANTERBURY–WESTLAND

Ross Rattray FCA

Sheena Mason FCA

Steve Wakefield FCA

WAIKATO–BAY OF PLENTY

WELLINGTON

SYDNEY

Brian Roche FCA

Peter Wells FCA

Murray Taylor FACA
Rosemary Chung FCA

Bruce Taylor FCA
Viv Brownrigg FCA

Frank Owen FCA

UNITED KINGDOM

Rhys Barlow FCA

Alan Teixeira FCA
Deborah Weston FCA

LIFE MEMBERS
NZICA’s highest honour is presented in recognition
of professional achievements or contributions to the
accounting profession. The honour has been bestowed
on 43 members over NZICA’s 104-year history.
Twelve people currently hold Life Memberships.

Member

Awarded

David Macdonald FCA

2011

Jim Hoare FCA

2011

Warren Allen FCA

2010

John Hagen FCA

2005

David Emanuel FCA

2004

Don Trow FCA

2003

Michael Fenton FCA

2002

Tony Frankham FCA

2002

Peter Hays FCA

1999

Frank Devonport FCA (Hon Retired)

1995

Athol Mann FCA (Hon Retired)

1991

Malcolm McCaw FCA (Hon Retired)

1991
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STATUTORY AUTHORITY

RULES OF NZICA

NZICA operates within a statutory and regulatory
framework to promote quality, education and integrity
in the accounting profession, regulate our members and
advocate on their behalf, and act in the public interest.

NZICA’s Rules, under Section 6 of the Act, are key in
regulating NZICA’s governance, quality assurance,
conduct functions, and aspects of general operation.
The Rules specify policy and procedures around the
governance, operation and administration of NZICA.

NZICA was established in 1908 (as the then New Zealand
Society of Accountants). It now operates under the
New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants Act
1996 (the Act), which formalises NZICA’s role as a
regulatory body with responsibility for the profession
in New Zealand. In general terms, the Act prescribes the
role of NZICA in regulating its members’ activities and
conduct. Within this statutory context, NZICA:
■

develops and promulgates ethical rules, professional
and ethical standards and related guidance

■

contributes through advocacy to the development
of national financial reporting standards and
international financial reporting and professional and
ethical standards

■

provides quality assurance services to members

■

promotes the Chartered Accountant, Associate Chartered
Accountant and Accounting Technician Colleges

■

provides strong input to the international accounting
community, including through the International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) and the Global
Accounting Alliance (GAA)

■

provides networking, career and practice
development opportunities

■

aids public policy development through submissions
to government on issues of importance to its
members and the wider business community

■

provides professional education and information
services to members.

NZICA operates under a culture of placing public interest
alongside member interest.

Amendments to the Rules are authorised either through
member vote at an annual or special general meeting,
or by Council or Board (for some appendices). Policies,
procedures and operations of NZICA must be consistent
and compliant with the Rules.

CODE OF ETHICS
Section 7 of the Act requires NZICA to “always have a
Code of Ethics that governs the professional conduct of
its members”. The Code sets out fundamental principles
and provides guidance on professional conduct needed
to sustain public confidence in the profession, and is a
positive point of difference between NZICA members and
other accountants.
Compliance with the Code is mandatory for all NZICA
members at all times. Non-compliance with the Code of
Ethics may expose a member to disciplinary action.
The Code of Ethics is based on the following five
fundamental principles:
■

Integrity

■

Objectivity and independence

■

Competence

■

Quality performance

■

Professional behaviour.
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COUNCIL
Responsibility for the direction of NZICA’s affairs is vested
in the Council under Section 6 of the Act. Within the
responsibilities of the Act and Rules, Council’s role is to:

The Council comprises 19 elected Councillors and up
to six appointed Councillors (to balance region, sector,
demographic and skills representation).

■

develop and approve NZICA’s long-term strategic
intent and governance principles

MEETING DATES

■

develop and approve, with the Board, NZICA’s
five-to-ten-year strategic plan

29 September 2011 (Joint Council & Board session),
30 November 2011 and 20 March 2012

■

provide input to the Board on key policy issues
that will significantly impact on members

Meeting date

■

appoint and evaluate the Board and approve
remuneration levels for Board members

■

appoint and evaluate the Nominations and
Governance Committee

■

elect the President and Vice President

■

confer Life Memberships and Fellowships

■

represent the interests of the membership as
a whole.

Attended

Apologies

29 September 2011

24

4

30 November 2011

25

4

20 March 2012

21

5

2011–2012 COUNCIL
Richard Austin FCA, President, Canterbury–Westland (appointed November 2011)
Liz Hickey FCA, Vice President, Auckland (appointed November 2011)
Sharon Cooke FCA, Canterbury–Westland

Rex McKinnon FCA, Wanganui

Cassandra Crowley CA, Wellington

Don MacKenzie CA, Canterbury–Westland

Richard Dey CA, Coastal Bay of Plenty

Anne Marett CA, Canterbury–Westland

Andrew Dick CA, Auckland

Shelly Mitchell-Jenkins CA, Manawatu

Graham Edwards FCA, Hawke's Bay

Kevin Murphy CA, Taranaki

Grant Ellis CA, Auckland

Baubre Murray CA, Wellington

Lyall Evans CA, Gisborne–East Coast

Chris Pool CA, Northland

Peter Hanson CA, Sydney

Andrew Robinson FCA, UK (Alternate)

Fred Hutchings FCA, Wellington

Murray Taylor FACA, Auckland

Laurie Jordan FCA, Taranaki

Susan Tremlett CA, Auckland

Ian Leggett FCA, UK

Stephen Walker CA, Wellington

Tim Loan CA, Southland

Grant Wilson CA, Nelson

Rob McDonald CA, Auckland

Craig Wyatt CA, Otago

The following Council Members left the Council at the 2011 AGM held on 30 November.
Ross Jackson FCA, President, Southland – completed term as President
John Apanowicz, CA, Wellington – completed term
John Bennett, FCA, Manawatu – resigned
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NOMINATIONS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
The Nominations and Governance Committee (N&G) is
appointed by Council to ensure that there is sufficient
talent available for governance roles within NZICA.

MEETINGS

N&G’s functions are to:

Member

Meetings

Attended

Tony Burn FCA (Chair)

3

3

Graham Crombie FCA

3

3

ensure the effectiveness of NZICA’s governance

Nicki Crauford

3

2

facilitate the performance evaluation of Council
and Board

Peter Gulliver CA

3

2

Susie Johnston FCA

3

3

nominate candidates for appointment to the
Board, and appointed Councillor positions to
provide a balance of sector, demographic and
skills on Council

■
■

■

■

22 September 2011, 25 October 2011 and 7 May 2012

advise Council on remuneration matters for
those holding governance roles within NZICA.

N&G has six members, which may include one or
more independents. Meetings are held as required
but average about two per year.

Ross Jackson FCA (Pres) *

2

1

Richard Austin FCA (Pres) **

1

1

N&G COMMITTEE

* (end of term November 2011)

Tony Burn FCA (Chair)

** (beginning of term December 2011)

Nicki Crauford
Peter Gulliver CA
Susie Johnstone FCA
Richard Austin FCA
Graham Crombie FCA
Terry McLaughlin FCA (Ex officio)
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BOARD
The Board is responsible for strategic planning, policy and
operational matters to achieve the strategy agreed with
Council. The Board’s functions are to:
■

act as the Executive Board of NZICA

■

carry out the functions of NZICA

■

develop and approve, with the Council,
NZICA’s five-to-ten-year strategic plan

■

be responsible for developing, approving,
implementing and monitoring the other strategic
and operational plans and policies of NZICA

■

appoint, authorise delegations for, oversee and direct
all permanent bodies, national committees, and other
committees, boards and tribunals of NZICA

■

appoint and monitor performance of the
Chief Executive and authorise delegations
to the Chief Executive

■

be responsible for the financial affairs of NZICA
and approve the annual plan and budget.

The Board has a close working relationship with Council
and the Chief Executive in carrying out its functions. The
Board comprises eight members including the Chair and
two independents, and meets approximately eight times
a year. The President, Vice President and Chief Executive
are ex-officio members of the Board, with no voting rights.

2011–2012 BOARD

Craig Norgate CA

Graham Crombie FCA (Chair)

Craig is Deputy Chair of Port Taranaki Limited, a Director
of Aotearoa Fisheries Limited and Sealord Group Limited.

Company Director and Investor

Partner, Polson Higgs Chartered Accountants
Graham is Chairman of the Board and a Past President
(2008) of NZICA. He holds several Board and Chair
appointments including being Chair of the Otago
Museum and Action Engineering Ltd.

Neil Paviour-Smith CA

Liz Hickey FCA

Queen’s Counsel at Harbour Chambers

Catherine Drayton CA

(resigned Nov 2011)
(appointed Nov 2011)

Company Director
Catherine is a former partner in charge of assurance and
advisory services for PwC in Central and Eastern Europe
(excluding the Commonwealth of Independent States).
She is a Director of Christchurch International Airport,
Ngai Tahu Holdings Group and NZ Hockey Federation.

Managing Director of Forsyth Barr Limited
Neil is a Director of New Zealand Exchange Limited (NZX).
Hugh Rennie QC
Hugh is a former non-executive Chairman of M-Co
International Ltd and former non-executive director of
the Bank of New Zealand.

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS
Richard Austin FCA, President

(appointed Nov 2011)

Murray Jack CA

Richard is a Director of Strategic Wealth Management
Group, investment and business advisers.

Chairman, Deloitte New Zealand

Liz Hickey FCA, Vice President

Murray is a former head of the Deloitte Asia Pacific
consulting practice and he is a member of the Board of
the Financial Markets Authority.

Liz is a former Director of a Crown research company,
Environmental Science and Research Limited, a Director/
Trustee of Southern Cross Healthcare entities and was
recently appointed as Director of Diabetes New Zealand Inc.

Doug McKay

(appointed Nov 2011)

Chief Executive of Auckland Council

Terry McLaughlin FCA NZICA Chief Executive

Doug is a former Chief Executive of Sealord Group Limited,
and former Executive Chairman of Independent Liquor.

Terry is a Director of the Global Accounting Alliance
and is Technical Advisor to Warren Allen FCA, Deputy
President of IFAC.

Allan Newman FCA
Director, Sadler Oakly Newman Ltd Chartered Accountants
Allan is a former NZICA Councillor and past Chair of the
former National Public Practice Committee.

Ross Jackson FCA, President
(completed term as President Nov 2011)
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MEETING DATES
1 August 2011, 29 September 2011, 27 October 2011,
1 December 2011, 19 March 2012, 23 April 2012 and
1 June 2012
Member

Member

Meetings

Attended

Hugh Rennie QC (Chair)

3

3

Liz Hickey FCA
(16 September last meeting)

1

1

Meetings

Attended

Graham Crombie FCA (Chair)

7

7

Catherine Drayton CA

2

2

Allan Newman FCA

7

7

Neil Paviour-Smith CA

3

3

Craig Norgate CA

7

4

Doug McKay

7

6

Hugh Rennie QC

7

6

Liz Hickey FCA*

3

3

Murray Jack CA

7

6

Neil Paviour-Smith CA

7

6

Graham Crombie FCA (Chair), Doug McKay, Craig Norgate CA

Catherine Drayton CA

4

3

Meeting dates

Ross Jackson FCA
(President, Ex Officio) *

4

3

Richard Austin FCA
(President, Ex Officio) **

7

Liz Hickey FCA
(Vice President, Ex Officio) **

4

4

Terry McLaughlin FCA
(Chief Executive, Ex Officio)

7

7

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Board of NZICA has delegated to the Remuneration
Committee its responsibilities and role in respect
of demonstrating to the Institute’s members and
stakeholders that NZICA sets remuneration in a fair and
reasonable manner in accordance with objective criteria.
Current committee members

6 July 2011 and 17 April 2012
Member

6

* (end of term November 2011)
** (beginning of term November 2011)

The Board employs the following sub-committees to
assist it in discharging its functions:

Meetings

Attended

Graham Crombie FCA (Chair)

2

2

Craig Norgate CA

2

2

Doug McKay

2

2

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE
The Board of NZICA has delegated to the Nominations
Committee its responsibilities and role in respect of
appointments, delegations and oversight of national
committees, and other committees, boards and tribunals
of the Institute.
Current Committee Members
Allan Newman FCA (Chair), Graham Crombie FCA,
Liz Hickey FCA

AUDIT, FINANCE & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Meeting dates

This committee oversees all aspects of audit, finance and
risk management on behalf of the Board.

27 October 2011 and 23 April 2012

Current committee members

Member

Hugh Rennie QC (Chair), Catherine Drayton CA and
Neil Paviour-Smith CA
Meeting dates
16 September 2011, 8 February 2012, and 25 May 2012

Meetings

Attended

Allan Newman FCA (Chair)

2

2

Graham Crombie FCA

2

2

Liz Hickey FCA

2

2

40 2012 ANNUAL REPORT NEW ZEALAND INSTITUTE OF CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

NATIONAL PERMANENT BODIES
At national level, NZICA has in place a number of tribunals,
committees and Advisory Groups (collectively called
permanent bodies) to contribute to the achievement of
our strategic and business plans by providing technical
expertise in specific areas or representation of member
views and interests across particular sectors. Each group
comprises NZICA members and in a few cases non-members
to provide an external perspective or to bring specific
expertise. Permanent bodies are prescribed in the Rules
(Section 11, Appendix VI) and in the case of the statutory
bodies, the New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants
Act 1996. All permanent bodies report to the Board.

ADMISSIONS/MEMBERSHIP AND
PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS BODIES
Admissions and Membership Committee
PreP Academic Committee
Admissions Appeals Tribunal
Practice Review Advisory Group
Professional Standards Board

STATUTORY BODIES
Professional Conduct Committee
Disciplinary Tribunal
Appeals Council

SECTORAL ADVISORY GROUPS
Public Practice Advisory Group
Corporate Sector Advisory Group
Public Sector Advisory Group
Regional Advisory Group
Tax Advisory Group

JUDGING/SELECTION PANELS
Research PhD Scholarships Panel
Awards Judging Panels

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND MANAGEMENT
The Chief Executive fulfils a leadership role with
management, and is a strategic partner of the Board as
an ex-officio member with speaking rights but no voting
rights. The Chief Executive is involved in the Board’s
setting of objectives, attends all Council and Board
meetings, and reports on policy and strategic issues,
operations and performance against strategic objectives.
The Chief Executive is responsible for staff recruitment
and performance management.

Executive and may be asked, through the Chief Executive
and with the Chief Executive’s consent, to present or
undertake work for these governance bodies.

GOVERNANCE RELATIONSHIPS
The relationship between Council, Board and management
is critical to the successful governance of NZICA. The essence
of this relationship is good faith, trust and no surprises.

GOVERNANCE POLICIES AND PRACTICES

In addition to contributing to, and managing the
development of, NZICA’s various plans, NZICA’s
management team is responsible to the Chief Executive
for the implementation of these plans and for assisting
the Chief Executive in reporting progress against them
to the Board.

NZICA has a well developed Governance Manual for Council,
Board and the N&G Committee, which complies with the
Act and Rules of NZICA, and has in place a comprehensive
performance evaluation process for the governance bodies
and processes within NZICA, and individual members on
those bodies. Some key aspects of our governance policies
and practices are highlighted below.

Management has the opportunity to communicate with
NZICA’s various governance bodies through the Chief

Induction: An important aspect of ensuring that
Councillors, Board and N&G members discharge their
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responsibilities effectively is that they commence their
role with sufficient induction. This is carried out by the
Governance Director following the commencement of
members’ terms.
Performance expectations: Members of the Council,
Board, N&G and other committees/boards are expected
to meet the requirements of the Governance Manual and
their own obligations to the governance body to which
they are elected or appointed, as well as to comply with
NZICA’s Code of Ethics, Rules and values. It is expected
that they will discharge their duties with regard to:
■

regular and full attendance, and active contribution
at meetings

■

turnaround of decisions by circular resolution within
specified timeframes

■

sufficient preparation for meetings, including
familiarity with agenda material and background of
issues to be raised

■

integrity

■

objectivity

■

independence and recognition of situations where
conflicts of interest must be disclosed

■

confidentiality of deliberations and decisions.

Conflicts of interest: The personal interests of members
of governance bodies and those of an associated person
must not be allowed to prevail over those of NZICA’s
members generally. A member of a governance body
should seek to avoid conflicts of interest whenever
possible. Full disclosure of any conflict or potential
conflict must be made to NZICA. If a conflict does arise,
a member of a governance body must consider the
appropriate action to take.
Indemnity: Under Rule 26, all members of NZICA’s
governance bodies are fully indemnified by NZICA
against all costs, expenses and liability incurred in the
due conduct of duties or engagement, unless incurred
as a result of a wilful act, default or neglect. The
Governance Director will ensure that indemnity policies
for Board, Council and N&G members are maintained
and regularly reviewed.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for year ended 30 June 2012

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2012
in thousands of New Zealand dollars

Note
Revenue

1

2012

2011

37,442

35,118

12,789

13,138

Expenses
Employee benefits
Depreciation

6

1,126

998

Amortisation

7

488

407

Professional services

2,396

2,306

Direct expenses

7,565

6,700

Premise & facility expenses

5,052

4,906

Information technology expenses

1,976

1,006

Travel-related expenses

1,884

1,856

4,093

3,015

37,369

34,332

73

786

-

-

73

786

Income tax on items of other comprehensive income

-

-

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

-

-

73

786

Other expenses

2

Total expenses
Surplus before income tax
Income tax (benefit)/expense

3

Surplus after income tax
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the period

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS’ FUNDS
For the year ended 30 June 2012
in thousands of New Zealand dollars

Note
Balance at 1 July 2010
Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

NZICA members'
funds

Special interest
groups' funds

Total members'
funds

9,059

199

9,258

679

107

786

-

-

-

679

107

786

Balance at 30 June 2011

9,738

306

10,044

Balance at 1 July 2011

9,738

306

10,044

(55)

128

73

-

-

-

(55)

128

73

9,683

434

10,117

Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Balance at 30 June 2012

11

The accompanying notes form part of, and are to be read in conjunction with, these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2012
in thousands of New Zealand dollars

Note

2012

2011

4

4,133

4,468

5,896

5,167

1,754

1,413

-

3

10

20

11,793

11,071

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Trade and other receivables

5

Income tax receivable
Inventories
Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment

6

5,706

6,076

Intangible assets

7

1,291

905

6,997

6,981

18,790

18,052

Total non-current assets
Total assets

Liabilities
Trade and other payables and liabilities

8

3,912

2,619

Employee benefits

9

1,101

1,146

Income in advance

2,958

3,481

Total current liabilities

7,971

7,246

Trade and other payables and liabilities

8

663

730

Employee benefits

9

39

32

702

762

8,673

8,008

9,683

9,738

434

306

10,117

10,044

18,790

18,052

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Members’ funds
NZICA members’ funds
Special Interest Groups’ funds
Total members’ funds

11

Total members’ funds and liabilities
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Graham Crombie FCA – Chair
Date: 10 September 2012

Catherine Drayton CA – Director
Date: 10 September 2012
The accompanying notes form part of, and are to be read in conjunction with, these financial statements
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for year ended 30 June 2012

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
As at 30 June 2012
in thousands of New Zealand dollars

Note

2012

2011

19,887

19,018

Cash receipts from professional development

9,833

8,628

Cash receipts from other

6,230

5,126

Cash paid to suppliers

(21,303)

(19,348)

Cash paid to employees

(12,827)

(12,966)

638

669

3

6

(156)

(25)

2,305

1,108

13,588

24,125

(757)

(995)

(1,154)

(888)

(14,317)

(23,204)

(2,640)

(962)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

(335)

146

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

4,468

4,322

4,133

4,468

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from subscriptions and application fees

Interest received
Income tax received
Net goods and services tax paid
Net cash flows from operating activities

12

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from maturity of investments
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assets
Acquisition of investments
Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

4

The accompanying notes form part of, and are to be read in conjunction with, these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Reporting entity
The New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants (NZICA) is a statutory entity constituted under the New
Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants Act 1996. NZICA is domiciled in New Zealand. NZICA represents the
interests of members of the accounting profession working in New Zealand and around the world.
(b) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand generally accepted accounting
practice (“NZ GAAP”).
NZ GAAP requires each entity to be classified as either a public benefit entity, or as a profit-orientated entity.
A public benefit entity is one whose primary objective is to provide goods or services for community or
social benefit. The Directors consider that NZICA does not meet the criteria to be a public benefit entity, and
accordingly it is classified as a profit-orientated entity.
The financial statements comply with New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
(“NZ IFRS”) and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).
The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis, and are presented in New Zealand dollars (NZD),
rounded to the nearest thousand. The accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented
in these financial statements. Any exceptions are outlined under part (p) of these accounting policies.
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 10 September 2012.
(c)

Basis for consolidation
Subsidiary
On 1 January 2011 NZICA amalgamated the business of its wholly owned subsidiary, Advanced Business
Education Limited (ABEL). The financial statements of ABEL were integrated with NZICA’s financial statements up
to the date of amalgamation.

(d) Foreign currency
Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at balance date are translated
to NZD at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are
recognised in the surplus or deficit.
(e) Property, plant and equipment
Classes of property, plant and equipment
The major classes of property, plant and equipment are:
• computer equipment
• equipment general
• furniture and fittings
• leasehold alterations
• library
• motor vehicles
All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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Disposal of property, plant and equipment
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is disposed of, the gain or loss is recognised in the surplus or
deficit. This is calculated as the difference between the net sales price and the carrying amount of the asset.
Depreciation
Depreciation is charged to the surplus or deficit using the straight-line method. Depreciation is set at rates that
will write off the cost of the assets, less their estimated residual values, over their useful lives (or for leasehold
alteration assets, the shorter of useful lives and the term of the lease). The estimated useful lives of major classes
of assets are shown below.
Class of asset
Computer equipment
Equipment general
Furniture and fittings
Leasehold alterations
Library
Motor vehicles

Estimated life
3 to 5 years
3 to 5 years
10 years
5 to 16 years
6 to 7 years
4 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual value of assets are reassessed at balance date. Depreciation of
assets which are constructed or developed over a period of time does not commence until the asset is available
for use.
(f)

Intangible assets
Software
Software applications that are acquired by NZICA are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.
Development costs
Development expenditure in relation to new or improved services and products is recognised as an asset. This is
stated at cost and amortised over the period of expected benefits in a manner consistent with the consumption
of benefits, not exceeding five years. All other development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
surplus or deficit as incurred.
Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalised only when it increases the service potential or future
economic benefits embodied in the related specific asset. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred through
the surplus or deficit.
Amortisation
Amortisation is charged to the surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets. Amortisation of assets which are constructed or developed over a period of time does not
commence until the asset is available for use. The estimated useful lives are as follows.
Type of asset
Software
Development costs

Estimated life
3 to 5 years
3 to 5 years

(g) Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less impairment losses. Trade and other receivables are regarded as
impaired when they exceed 90 days. Impairment of other receivables past due is established on individual
assessment of receivables. Bad debts are written off during the period in which they are identified.
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(h) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances, call deposits and deposits with a maturity of no more than
three months from the date of inception.
(i)

Investments
Investments comprise fixed term deposits with registered banks. All investments have a maturity date of greater
than three months at inception and are initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they are recognised as
investments measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less impairment.

( j)

Impairment
The carrying amounts of NZICA’s assets are reviewed at each balance date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated. If the
estimated recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the asset is written down to its
estimated recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit.
Calculation of recoverable amount
Receivables and investments are carried at amortised cost. The estimated recoverable amount is calculated as
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at their original effective interest rate. Receivables
with a short duration are not discounted.
The estimated recoverable amount of non-financial assets is the greater of their fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. Value in use is calculated differently depending on whether an asset generates cash or not. For an
asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
For non-cash-generating assets that are not part of a cash-generating unit, value in use is based on depreciated
replacement cost. For cash-generating assets, value in use is determined by estimating future cash flows from
the use and ultimate disposal of the asset. These cash flows are then discounted to present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market rates and the risks specific to the asset.

(k) Employee benefits
Annual leave
Annual leave liabilities are short-term obligations and are calculated on an accrual basis at the amount NZICA
expects to pay.
Long-service leave
NZICA’s net obligation for long-service leave is calculated using the projected unit credit method and is
discounted to present value.
(l)

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Amortised cost is determined using the effective interest rate method. Short-term trade and other payables are
not discounted.

(m) Income tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at balance date, and any adjustment to tax payable for previous years.
Subscription income is not liable for income tax. In all other cases NZICA is only liable for income tax relating to
members’ activities where a clear service or good has been provided. Income tax is payable on any services or
goods provided to non-members and interest revenue earned on investments. Income tax expense is recognised
on the operating surplus derived from these activities, before taxation, adjusted for permanent differences
between assessable and accounting income.
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Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method. Temporary differences are provided for
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes.
The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at balance date.
A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable surpluses will be
available against which the asset can be used. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
(n) Goods and service tax
The Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of Cash Flows have been prepared on a goods and
services tax (GST) exclusive basis. All items in the Statement of Financial Position are stated net of GST with the
exception of accounts receivable and payable, which include GST invoiced. Where GST is irrecoverable as an input
tax, it is recognised as part of the related asset or expense.
(o) Revenue recognition
Subscriptions
NZICA’s membership subscription year is 1 July to 30 June. Subscriptions are receivable in advance but only those
subscription receipts which are attributable to the current financial year are recognised as revenue.
Professional competency course fees
Competency course programmes are provided for intending members of NZICA. Course fees are receivable in
advance and income is recognised as the course programme is delivered.
Professional development
NZICA provides professional development courses for members and non-members. Course fees are receivable in
advance and income is recognised upon delivery of the course.
Practice review fees
NZICA is responsible for reviewing each member public practitioner to ensure that the quality of the practice’s
work meets legislative, financial reporting and professional standards requirements. Income from these reviews
is recognised as the review progresses.
Journal revenue
NZICA produces the Chartered Accountants Journal and receives income from advertising and non-member
subscriptions. Advertising revenue is recognised as each edition is published. Non-member subscriptions are
receivable in advance and income is recognised over the subscription period.
Partnership Programme and sponsorship
The Partnership Programme allows businesses, in exchange for marketing and sponsorship funding, to align
themselves with NZICA to provide benefits to NZICA and members. All revenue from the Partnership Programme
is used by NZICA according to the contractual arrangements with the individual partners. This funding is
recognised as revenue over the period of the programme as specified in the individual contracts.
Other revenue-generating activities
Other revenue-generating activities include hiring out conference centre facilities, sale of publications and
entrance fees. Revenue from such services is recognised in the surplus or deficit in proportion to the stage of
completion of the transaction at balance date.
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method.
Donated services recognition
The work of NZICA is dependent on the voluntary services of many members. Due to the difficulty in determining
value with sufficient reliability, donated services are not recognised in these financial statements.
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(p) New accounting standards and interpretations
(i) Changes in accounting policy and disclosure
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as follows.
NZICA has adopted the following new and amended New Zealand Equivalents to Financial Reporting Standards
(NZ IFRS) and Interpretations as of 1 July 2011:
Improvements to NZ IFRSs – Amendments to NZ IFRSs arising from the Annual Improvements Project (2010)
Emphasises the interaction between quantitative and qualitative NZ IFRS 7 disclosures and the nature and
extent of risks associated with financial instruments.
Clarifies that an entity will present an analysis of other comprehensive income for each component of equity
either in the statement of changes in equity or in the notes to the financial statements.
NZ IAS 24 – Related party disclosures (revised 2009)
The revised NZ IAS 24 simplifies the definition of a related party, clarifying its intended meaning and eliminating
inconsistencies from the definition. The amendment explicitly adds disclosure requirements for commitments
(including executor contracts) with related parties.
NZ IFRS 7 – Amendments to NZ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
The amendments enhance the transparency of disclosure requirements for the transfer of financial assets.
For transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety but where the entity has a continuing
involvement in them, the amendments require disclosure of information that enables users of financial
statements to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, the entity’s continuing involvement in those
derecognised assets.
For transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety, the amendments require disclosure
of information that enables users of financial statements to understand the relationship between those assets
which are not derecognised and their associated liabilities.
All the information will need to be presented in a single note in an entity’s financial statements.
FRS 44 – New Zealand Additional Disclosures
This standard is a consequence of the joint Trans-Tasman Convergence project of the Australian Accounting
Standards (AASB) and Financial Reporting Standards Board (FRSB).
This standard relocates New Zealand specific disclosures from other standards to one place and revises
disclosures in the following areas:
(a) compliance with NZ IFRS
(b) the statutory basis or reporting framework for financial statements
(c) audit fees
(d) imputation credits
(e) reconciliation of cash flow to profit or loss
Harmonisation Amendments
Amendments to NZ IFRS to harmonise with IFRS and Australian Accounting Standards:
(a) remove the disclosures which have been relocated to FRS 44
(b) harmonise audit fee disclosure requirements in NZ IAS 1 with AASB 101
(c) harmonise imputation/franking credits’ disclosure requirements in NZ IAS 12 with AASB 101
(d) introduction of the option to use the indirect method of reporting cash flows in NZ IAS 7
(e) remove the requirement to use an independent valuer and the related disclosure requirements currently
in NZ IAS 16 and NZ IAS 40
(f) remove some NZ-specific disclosures
The adoption of the above amendments resulted in changes to accounting policies but had no significant impact
on the financial position or performance of NZICA.
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(ii) Accounting standards issued but not yet effective
NZ IFRS 9 (2009) Financial Instruments
NZ IFRS 9 (2009) includes requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets resulting from
the first part of Phase 1 of the IASB’s project to replace NZ IAS 39.
These requirements improve and simplify the approach for classification and measurement of financial assets
compared with the requirements of NZ IAS 39. The revised Standard introduces a number of changes to the
accounting for financial assets, the most significant includes:
(a) Two categories for financial assets; are now amortised cost or fair value
(b) Strict requirements now determine which financial assets can be classified as amortised cost or fair value.
Financial assets can only be classified as amortised cost if (i) the contractual cash flows from the instrument
represent principal and interest and (ii) the entity’s purpose for holding the instrument is to collect the
contractual cash flows
(c) Reclassifications between amortised costs and fair value are no longer permitted unless the entity’s business
model for holding the asset changes
This standard will not significantly affect NZICA’s financial position or performance. Any changes will be of a
presentation nature only.
The application date of this standard is 1 January 2015. The application date for NZICA is 1 July 2015.
(q) Financial assets
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of assets not at
fair value through the surplus or deficit, directly attributable transaction costs.
Recognition and derecognition
All normal purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date. The trade date is the date
that NZICA commits to purchase the asset. Normal purchases or sales of financial assets under contracts, require
delivery of the assets within the period. Financial assets are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows
from the financial assets has expired or been transferred.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Gains and losses are recognised in the surplus or deficit when the loans and receivables are written-off or
impaired. These are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after
balance date, which are classified as non-current.
(r)

Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date. When the arrangement is fulfilled it may be dependent on the use of a specific
asset(s) or may convey a right to use the asset(s). The right to use the asset may not be explicitly specified in an
arrangement. These matters do not affect the determination of the lease.
NZICA as lessee
Capitalised lease assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease
term if there is no reasonable certainty that NZICA will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in the statement of comprehensive income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Operating lease incentives are recognised as a liability when received.
The liability is released by allocating lease payments between rental expense and reduction of the liability.

(s)

Comparative Information
Certain prior year comparatives have been amended to align with current year disclosure.
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in thousands of New Zealand dollars

1

Revenue

2012

2011

20,746

20,096

Professional competency course fees

5,527

5,161

Professional development

4,306

4,057

Practice review fees

1,918

1,510

678

598

1,062

1,029

Publications

328

240

Interest income

638

669

2,239

1,758

37,442

35,118

2012

2011

Directors fees and expenses

333

321

Office bearers’ honoraria

146

179

73

171

Assessing a new single Institute with ICAA

636

-

Fees paid to auditor for other services (professional development
course presentation and other)

241

164

89

96

129

126

(12)

42

94

29

-

4

Subscription and application fees

Journal revenue
Partnership Programme and sponsorship

Other

2

Other expenses includes the following items

Impairment of trade receivables (bad and doubtful debts)

Note

5

Audit fees (for the audit of the financial statements)
Impairment of intangible assets
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) on overseas translations
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Donations

7

To date we have spent $636,000 on assessing the benefits of creating a new single Institute with ICAA. We are
now conducting further work to present members with a comprehensive consultation document.
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3

Income tax expense

2012

2011

Current year expense

-

-

Total current tax (benefit)/expense

-

-

29

35

(29)

(35)

Total deferred tax (benefit)/expense

-

-

Total income tax (benefit)/expense

-

-

Surplus before income tax

73

786

Prima facie income tax using NZICA’s domestic tax rate of 28% (2011: 30%)

21

236

Non-deductible expenses

34

80

Other adjustments

48

8

(687)

(1,180)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

613

895

Over-provided in prior periods

(29)

(39)

-

-

2012

2011

993

307

3,140

4,161

-

0

4,133

4,468

Current tax

Deferred tax
Movements in temporary differences
Adjustments for prior years

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Tax effects of adjustments

Non-taxable transactions with members

Total income tax (benefit)/expense

4

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances
Call deposits
Short-term deposits

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates their fair value due to their short-term nature.
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5

Trade and other receivables

2012

2011

Trade receivables from non-related parties

1,374

1,165

Prepayments

229

306

Goods and services tax

295

139

Other receivables

307

260

(451)

(457)

1,754

1,413

Less: provision for impairment

The carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value due to their short-term nature.
The calculation of the provision for impairment has been based on analysis of NZICA’s losses in previous
periods and review of specific trade and other receivables.

The movement in the provision for impairment of receivables is as follows

Balance at 1 July
Additional provisions made during the year
Provision used during the year
Balance at 30 June

2012

2011

(457)

(370)

(73)

(171)

79

84

(451)

(457)
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6

Property, plant and equipment
Library

Computer
equipment

Equipment
general

Furniture
& fittings

Leasehold
alterations

Motor
vehicle

Total

Cost
Balance at 1 July 2010

96

2,363

1,233

1,399

4,217

21

9,329

Additions

18

441

32

25

289

33

838

Disposals

-

(222)

(152)

(68)

-

-

(442)

Balance at 30 June 2011

114

2,582

1,113

1,356

4,506

54

9,725

Balance at 1 July 2011

114

2,582

1,113

1,356

4,506

54

9,725

Additions

11

507

58

158

23

-

757

Disposals

-

-

(41)

(3)

(105)

-

(149)

125

3,089

1,130

1,511

4,424

54

10,333

Balance at 1 July 2010

(37)

(1,857)

(735)

(185)

(241)

(2)

(3,057)

Depreciation charge for the year

(16)

(342)

(170)

(145)

(313)

(12)

(998)

-

210

144

52

-

-

406

Balance at 30 June 2011

(53)

(1,989)

(761)

(278)

(554)

(14)

(3,649)

Balance at 1 July 2011

(53)

(1,989)

(761)

(278)

(554)

(14)

(3,649)

Depreciation charge for the year

(18)

(371)

(165)

(152)

(408)

(12)

(1,126)

-

-

40

3

105

-

148

(71)

(2,360)

(886)

(427)

(857)

(26)

(4,627)

At 1 July 2011

61

593

352

1,078

3,952

40

6,076

At 30 June 2012

54

729

244

1,084

3,567

28

5,706

Balance at 30 June 2012

Depreciation and impairment losses

Disposals

Disposals
Balance at 30 June 2012

Carrying amounts

Assets under construction
The cost of assets under construction is reflected in property, plant and equipment costs (computer equipment
$430,000 (2011: $229,000) and leasehold improvements $0 (2011: $250,000).) These balances are not
depreciated until the asset is available for use.
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7

Intangible assets
Total
Cost
Balance at 1 July 2010

1,909

Additions

713

Disposals

(179)

Balance at 30 June 2011

2,443

Balance at 1 July 2011

2,443

Additions

1,091

Disposals

(95)

Balance at 30 June 2012

3,439

Amortisation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 July 2010
Amortisation charge for the year
Disposals

(1,182)
(407)
177

Impairments

(126)

Balance at 30 June 2011

(1,538)

Balance at 1 July 2011

(1,538)

Amortisation charge for the year

(488)

Disposals

7

Impairment

(129)

Balance at 30 June 2012

(2,148)

Carrying amounts
At 1 July 2010

727

At 30 June 2011

905

At 1 July 2011

905

At 30 June 2012

1,291

Assets under construction
The cost of assets under construction is reflected in the intangible asset costs (computer software $538,000
(2011: $358,000).)
Impairment
NZICA’s middleware asset has been fully impaired by $129,000 due to the uncertainty surrounding the
usefulness of a middleware solution in a yet to be determined joint IT service delivery model.
(2011 NZICA’s website asset was impaired by $126,000, due to lack of certainty around timing and value of
revenue streams generated on the website.)
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8

Trade and other payables and liabilities
2012

2011

853

704

Deferred lease incentives

67

67

Payable to related parties

38

40

2,954

1,808

3,912

2,619

663

730

663

730

Current
Trade payables to non-related parties

Accrued expenses

Non-current
Deferred lease incentives

Trade and other payables and liabilities are non-interest bearing. The carrying value of trade and other payables
approximate their fair value due to their short-term nature.

9

Employee benefits
2012

2011

25

22

Liability for annual leave

538

529

Payroll accrual

538

595

1,101

1,146

39

32

39

32

Current
Liability for long-service leave

Non-current
Liability for long-service leave

The non-current portion of the long-service leave liability is calculated based on NZICA’s estimate of the value
of the unvested liability at the end of the vesting period discounted by an appropriate discount rate. The
current portion of the long-service leave liability represents the actual value at current pay rates of the liability
that has already vested.
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10

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
a) Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Movements in unrecognised deferred tax assets during the year were as follows.

Deductible
temporary
differences
Tax losses

Balance
1 July 10

Movements
in surplus
or deficit

Movements
in other
comprehensive
income

Balance
30 June 11

Movements
in surplus
or deficit

Movements
in other
comprehensive
income

Balance
30 June 12

88

20

-

108

23

-

131

1,590

897

-

2,487

590

-

3,077

1,331

895

-

2,595

613

-

3,208

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences of $468,000 (2011: $386,000) and unutilised losses of
$10,989,000 (2011: $8,881,000) have not been recognised due to the uncertainty of recoverability.

11

Members’ funds
Capital management
NZICA’s capital is its members’ funds, which comprise accumulated surpluses. NZICA manages its revenues,
expenses, assets, liabilities, investments and general financial dealings prudently, promoting the current and
future interests of its members. Members’ funds are largely managed as a by-product of managing revenues,
expenses, assets, liabilities, investments and general financial dealings. NZICA has no externally imposed
capital management requirements.
NZICA members’ funds
NZICA members’ funds represents accumulated surpluses retained by NZICA.
Special Interest Groups’ funds
Special Interest Group (SIG) activities create revenue and expenditure which is recorded in the surplus or
deficit. Qualifying surpluses or deficits are transferred to SIG funds in the Statement of Financial Position.
These SIG funds represent unspent funds contributed by members of these groups, and are to be specifically
used for SIG activities.
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12

Reconciliation of the surplus/(deficit) for the period with net cash flows from operating activities
2012

2011

73

786

-

128

1,614

1,405

129

126

Bad debts written off

79

84

Change in doubtful debts

(6)

87

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

94

29

(12)

42

(341)

96

10

(5)

1,225

(434)

(38)

172

(523)

(1,414)

-

6

333

(1,579)

2,305

1,108

2012

2011

Less than one year

1,751

1,767

Between one and five years
More than five years

6,807

6,839

8,847

10,548

17,405

19,154

Surplus after income tax
Adjusted for:
Items classified as investing/financing activities
Add back non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment

Foreign exchange loss/(gain)
Movements in working capital:
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables and liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in employee benefits
(Decrease) in income in advance
Decrease in income tax
Net movement in working capital
Net cash inflow from operating activities

13

Leases as lessee
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows.

NZICA leases premises and a franking machine under operating leases. The premises leases typically run for a
period of 10 years and the franking machine lease runs for a period of four years, with options to renew. In the
case of leased premises, lease payments are increased periodically to reflect market rentals. No leases include
contingent rentals.
During the year ended 30 June 2012, $1,525,000 was recognised as an expense in the surplus or deficit in
respect of operating leases (2011: $1,561,000).
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14

Financial instruments
2012

2011

Cash and cash equivalents

4,133

4,468

Trade receivables

1,374

1,165

Other receivables

307

260

5,896

5,167

11,710

11,060

Trade and related-party payables

891

744

Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

891

744

Loans and receivables

Investments
Total loans and receivables

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

The carrying value of financial instruments approximates their fair value.
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign exchange risks arise in the normal course of NZICA’s
operations. Management carefully manages such risks in order to minimise any losses that could adversely
impact on NZICA’s financial results, as detailed below.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligations to NZICA, causing NZICA to incur a loss.
The financial instruments which potentially subject NZICA to credit risk consist principally of cash and cash
equivalents, investments, and trade and other receivables.
In the normal course of business, NZICA incurs credit risk from trade and other receivables, and transactions
with banking institutions. NZICA manages its exposure to credit risk by:
• only holding bank balances and short-term deposits with New Zealand and off-shore registered
banking institutions;
• maintaining credit control procedures over trade and other receivables.
The maximum exposure at balance date is equal to the total amount of cash and cash equivalents,
investments, and trade and other receivables disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position. Trade and other
receivables considered uncollectable have been written off and doubtful debts have been adequately provided
for. NZICA has no significant concentrations of credit risk. NZICA does not require any collateral or security to
support financial instruments and other debts it holds, due to the low risk associated with the realisation of
these instruments.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that NZICA will not have sufficient liquid funds to meet its commitments as they
fall due. Liquidity risk management is achieved by forecasting and monitoring cash flows on a daily basis.
The tenure of investments is managed to ensure that funds mature in appropriate timeframes to maintain
operational liquidity. All trade and related-party liabilities are contractually repayable within 30 days.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of NZICA’s investments will fluctuate due to changes in interest rates.
Interest rate risk is managed by limiting investments to short-term deposits held until maturity. The interest
rate risk associated with such deposits is considered minimal. NZICA has no borrowings and accordingly no
interest rate risk on liabilities.
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14

Financial instruments continued
Foreign exchange risk
NZICA has no significant foreign currency risk.
Sensitivity analysis
In managing interest rate risk NZICA aims to reduce the impact of short-term fluctuations on its earnings
by entering into fixed interest rate deposits. NZICA also maintains call accounts with variable interest rates.
At year end, a movement up or down of one percentage point in interest rates would not have a significant
impact on NZICA's surplus and total members' funds.
Quantitative disclosures
As at 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2011, all overdue receivables have been assessed for impairment and
appropriate provisions applied. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit
exposure. The status of receivables at the reporting date is as follows.
2012

2011

Gross

Impairment

Net

Gross

Impairment

Net

Not past due

555

-

555

472

-

472

Past due 1–30 days

280

-

280

176

-

176

Past due 31–60 days

88

-

88

60

-

60

Past due 61–180 days

112

(112)

-

145

(145)

-

Past due 181–365 days

116

(116)

-

89

(89)

-

Past due more than 1 year

223

(223)

-

223

(223)

-

1,374

(451)

923

1,165

(457)

708
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15

Related parties
Identity of related parties
NZICA has a related-party relationship with its Board members, the V E A Halligan Memorial Trust and its
executive management.
(b) Related-party transactions
Board
The following were members of the Board during the year:
Richard Austin (President)*
Elizabeth Hickey (Vice President)*
Ross Jackson**

Graham Crombie***
Catherine Drayton*
Murray Jack***
Doug McKay*

Allan Newman*
Craig Norgate****
Neil Paviour-Smith****
Hugh Rennie****

* Term commenced in November 2011
** Term completed in November 2011
***Term commenced December 2010
****Term commenced July 2009
Transactions between NZICA and members of the Board consist of the following.
2012

2011

60

79

-

10

-

8

60

18

8

3

Professional development fees and other

16

9

Board Chairman fees

76

79

Amount owing at year end

6

6

-

21

Ross Jackson (Partner in McCulloch & Partners)
Paid to McCulloch & Partners:
Honorarium as Office Bearer
Amount owing at year end
Received from McCulloch & Partners:
Practice review fees

Richard Austin
Paid to Richard Austin:
Honorarium as Office Bearer
Amount owing at year end

Graham Crombie (Partner of Polson Higgs)
Paid to Polson Higgs:

Received from Polson Higgs:
Practice review fees
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Related parties continued

2012

2011

Honorarium as Office Bearer

18

-

Board Director fees

15

33

3

3

39

34

Practice reviewer fees

-

31

Professional development fees

4

4

92

174

3

3

-

7

29

10

36

33

3

3

34

33

3

3

7

-

36

35

3

3

Elizabeth Hickey
Paid to Elizabeth Hickey:

Amount owing at year end

Murray Jack (Chairman of Deloitte)
Paid to Deloitte:
Board Director fees

DT/PCC fees
Amount owing at year end
Received from Deloitte:
Sponsorship
Practice review fees

Doug McKay (Director and shareholder in WYMAC Consulting Limited)
Paid to WYMAC Consulting Limited:
Board Director fees
Amount owing at year end

Allan Newman (Director and shareholder in Sadler Oakly Newman)
Paid to Allan Newman:
Board Director fees
Amount owing at year end
Received from Sadler Oakly Newman:
Practice review fees

Craig Norgate (Director of MCN Rural Investments Limited)
Paid to MCN Rural Investments Limited:
Board Director fees
Amount owing at year end
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15

Related parties continued

2012

2011

34

33

3

3

40

41

3

3

25

-

3

-

Neil Paviour-Smith
Paid to Neil Paviour-Smith:
Board Director fees
Amount owing at year end

Hugh Rennie
Paid to Hugh Rennie:
Board Director fees
Amount owing at year end

Catherine Drayton
Paid to Catherine Drayton:
Board Director fees
Amount owing at year end

All transactions were conducted on an arm’s length basis. Outstanding balances at year end are unsecured,
and interest free, and settlement occurs in cash. No debts have been written off in relation to these related
parties during the year.

V E A Halligan Memorial Trust
NZICA acts as the trustee of the V E A Halligan Memorial Trust (the Trust). The primary purpose of the Trust is to
provide an annual grant to promote the quality, expertise and education of accountants ordinarily resident in
Canterbury other than for the purpose of studying.
NZICA has not entered into any transactions with the Trust.

Executive management
Key management compensations were as follows.

Short-term employee benefits
Termination benefits
Post employment benefits
Long-term employee benefits

2012

2011

1,990

2,344

159

70

21

24

-

6

2,170

2,444
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Contingent liabilities
There are no contingent liabilities at 30 June 2012 (2011: nil).

17

Capital commitments
NZICA has capital commitments of $3.214m at 30 June 2012 (2011:Nil), principally relating to the
development of the new Chartered Accountants Programme, which will be launched in February 2013.

18

Key project summary for 2011/12
Project

2011/12
Total Project
Spend

Project spend classification
Operating
expenditure

Capital
expenditure

Impairment

Assets
Written
off

Assets
recognised
as at
30 June 12

30 June 12
Future
expenditure
commitments

Chartered Accountants
Program development

636

310

326

-

-

326

3,214*

Learning Management
System

178

178

-

-

-

-

1,284**

Single Sign One

202

-

202

-

-

202

44

IT Middleware

129

-

129

129

-

-

111

Minor system upgrades
and other

94

-

94

-

94

-

-

* The new Chartered Accountant program is being developed in conjunction with ICAA, with modules in
this programme being commisioned over 2013–14.
** ICAA collaboration is exploring a possible joint LMS solution.

19

Subsequent events
Other than the information already disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements there are no other
events subsequent to year end that require disclosure in these financial statements (2011: nil).

20

Accounting estimates and judgements
Information on significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting
policies which have the most significant effect in the preparation of these financial statements are included
in the following notes.
• Note 3 – income tax expense
NZICA carries out taxable and non-taxable activities. Management have applied judgement in preparing an
allocation of income and expenditure to taxable or non-taxable activities to determine the taxable income
for the income year.
• Note 5 – trade and other receivables
Management apply judgement in assessing the carrying value of trade and other receivables. Receivables
are considered impaired when they exceed 90 days. The calculation of the provision has been based on a
review of specific trade and other receivables.
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• Note 8 – trade and other payables and liabilities
Deferred lease incentives have been spread over the likely term that the national office and Auckland
premises will be occupied. Management have applied judgement in assessing the likely term of occupation.
• Note 9 – employee benefits
The value of employee benefits requires management judgement in assessing the non-current portion of
the long-service leave liability. Estimates used in calculating this liability are the estimated increase in
annual salaries, probability of employees reaching the vesting dates, and the appropriate discount factor
to apply in determining the present value of the liability. These estimates have been based on historical
human resource information for NZICA and current economic data.
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Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report
To the members of the New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants (“NZICA”)
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of NZICA on pages 44 to 67, which comprise the statement of financial
position of NZICA as at 30 June 2012, a statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in members’
funds and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.
This report is made solely to the members, as a body, in accordance with the Rules of NZICA. Our audit has been
undertaken so that we might state to NZICA’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than NZICA and NZICA’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.
Board’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Board is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand, and for such internal control as the Board determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). These auditing standards require that we
comply with relevant ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected, depend on our judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, we have considered the internal control relevant to NZICA’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness NZICA’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe we have obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Certain partners of Ernst & Young have presented for NZICA during the year and preside on various boards and
committees of NZICA.
In addition to this, partners and employees of our firm may deal with NZICA on normal terms within the ordinary
course of trading activities and membership of NZICA.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 44 to 67:
►

comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;

►

comply with International Financial Reporting Standards; and

►

present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of NZICA as at 30 June 2012 and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

